
CITY OF RIVERSIDE  
CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

RIVERSIDE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
60 GREENE ST  

RIVERSIDE, IOWA 52327 

Monday, June 02, 2025 @ 6:00 PM 

The meeting will be recorded and can be viewed live by visiting the city website at www.riversideiowa.gov. 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC: This is a meeting of the City Council to conduct the regular business of the city. Every 
item on the agenda is an item of discussion and action if needed. 

1. Call meeting to order
2. Roll Call
3. Approval of Agenda
4. Consent Agenda

a. Minutes pg 2
b. Expenditures pg 3
c. Alcohol Permit – RACC – TrekFest pg 4
d. Alcohol Permit – Kum & Go pg 5

5. Public forum: 3 minutes per person. See guidelines for public comments at the Clerk’s table.

6. City Engineer’s Report (Axiom Consultants) pg 8
a. CDBG Downtown Revitalization pg 9

i. Consider resolution to approve Pay Application #1 to Cornerstone Commercial 
Contractors, Inc. (2025-38) pg 14

b. PCC Improvements
c. Wellness Center
d. Cherry Lane Extension pg 15
e. Hall Park Pickleball Courts
f. Story Maps
g. 3rd St- Stumpf Construction / Streb Update

7. City Administrator’s Report
a. Solid Waste & Recycling Collection pg 16

i. Consider resolution to approve contract with Lakeshore Recycling Systems for Solid 
Waste & Recycling Collection Services for July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2030 pg 28

b. Meeting Streaming Update
c. Outdoor Warning Siren System Update
d. Commercial Drive Parking
e. Wellness Center Work Session
f. Annual Employee Performance Evaluations Special Meeting

8. Closing Comments

9. Motion to Adjourn

http://www.riversideiowa.gov/


RIVERSIDE CITY COUNCIL MEETING: Monday, May 19, 2025

The Riverside City Council meeting started at 6:00 pm in the Riverside City Council Chambers. Mayor
Allen Schneider called the meeting to order with Ryan Rogerson, Kevin Kiene, Lois Schneider, Tom
Sexton and Kevin Mills present. 

Kiene moved, seconded by Mills to approve the agenda. Passed 5-0. 

Rogerson moved, seconded by Schneider, to approve the consent agenda of minutes, expenditures
and Riverside Fire Department Report. Passed 5-0.  

Motion made by Rogerson, seconded by Mills to open the FY2025 Budget Amendments Public Hearing
at 6:02 pm. Passed 5-0. 

No comments were made by the public. 

Motion made by Kiene, seconded by Sexton to close the Public Hearing at 6:04 pm. Passed 5-0. 

Motioned by Kiene, seconded by Rogerson to pass Resolution 2025-35 to approve the FY2025 Budget
Amendments. Passed 5-0. 

Sheriff Jared Schneider, Washington County Sheriff s Department, reported on April calls. 

Councilperson Rogerson left the meeting. 

Motioned by Sexton, seconded by Kiene to pass Resolution 2025-36 to approve the FY2026 Law
Enforcement Contract with Washington County Sheriff s Department. Passed 4-0. 

Councilperson Rogerson returned to the meeting. 

Motioned by Rogerson, seconded by Schneider to approve permission for the Riverside Emergency
Services Association to sell alcohol on public property at the Riverside Fire Department for the annual
RESA Raffle Dinner on November 15th, 2025, pending the appropriate required alcohol sales permit
and DRAM insurance have been obtained and Iowa Retail Sales License training has been completed. 
Passed 5-0. 

Jed Wolf, PeopleService, Inc. presented the April water and wastewater operations report. 

Motioned by Schneider, seconded by Rogerson to pass Resolution 2025-37 to approve Pay Request
5 for UV Disinfection System Replacement to WRH, Inc. in the amount of $6,792.50. Passed 5-0.  

City Admin Smith gave an update on the City Engineer s Report consisting of updates on the Wellness
Center, PCC Improvements, CDBG Downtown Revitalization Project and Cherry Lane Extension
Project. 

City Council reviewed April financials. 

Rogerson moved, second by Mills to adjourn at 7:57 pm. Passed 5-0. 

Full content of city council meetings can be viewed on the city website www.riversideiowa.gov. 

Monday, June 2nd, 2025 at 6:00 pm City Council Meeting

Monday, June 16th, 2025 at 6:00 pm City Council Meeting

ATTEST: 

Stephanie Thomann, City Clerk Allen Schneider, Mayor



EXPENDITURES June 02, 2025
COUNCIL MEETING BILLS

1 1ST CLASS APPAREL BRYAN LENZ UNIFORMS 001-5-210-6181 $ 98.00
2 1ST CLASS APPAREL LOGAN MICHEL UNIFORMS 001-5-430-6181 $ 98.00 $ 196.00
3 ACCESS SYSTEMS COPIER LEASE 001-5-650-6496 $ 408.73
4 ALLIANT ENERGY STREET LIGHTS 001-5-230-6371 $ 1,359.70
5 ALLIANT ENERGY SEWER 610-5-815-6371 $ 877.57
6 ALLIANT ENERGY PARKS 001-5-430-6371 $ 499.05
7 ALLIANT ENERGY FIRE STATION 002-5-150-6330 $ 484.42
8 ALLIANT ENERGY CITY HALL 001-5-650-6371 $ 272.84
9 ALLIANT ENERGY WATER 600-5-810-6371 $ 191.00 $ 3,684.58
10 AXIOM CONSULTANTS ON CALL SERVICES 001-5-650-6407 $ 6,167.25
11 AXIOM CONSULTANTS COMMUNITY CENTER 302-5-750-6786 $ 30,362.50
12 AXIOM CONSULTANTS PICKLEBALL 301-5-750-6744 $ 506.25
13 AXIOM CONSULTANTS CHERRY LN EXT 301-5-750-6751 $ 758.75
14 AXIOM CONSULTANTS ACCESS & SECURITY 001-5-650-6407 $ 7,650.80
15 AXIOM CONSULTANTS CDBG DTWN REVIT 145-5-650-6435 $ 1,012.50 $ 46,458.05
16 BIG IRON BENCH BASE PLATES 001-5-430-6325 $ 198.99
17 BRYAN LENZ CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE 001-5-430-6373 $ 50.00
18 BRYAN LENZ UNIFORM REIMBURSEMENT 001-5-210-6181 $ 136.56
19 BRYAN LENZ UNIFORM REIMBURSEMENT 001-5-430-6181 $ 136.57 $ 323.13
20 CHRIS SEXTON ENTERPRISES BUILDING MAINTENANCE 001-5-650-6310 $ 3,912.50
21 COLE SMITH CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE 001-5-650-6373 $ 50.00
22 COLE SMITH MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 001-5-650-6240 $ 72.24 $ 122.24
23 FELD FIRE RESCUE EQUIPMENT 002-5-150-6356 $ 3,306.00
24 JOHNSON COUNTY REFUSE MAY CARTS 001-5-950-6499 $ 7,446.50
25 J&S PLUMBING, HEATING & AIR A/C BOILER SERVICE 001-5-210-6507 $ 130.95
26 J&S PLUMBING, HEATING & AIR FD - TOILET 002-5-150-6310 $ 416.40
27 LOGAN MICHEL CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE 001-5-210-6373 $ 50.00
28 MARC SUPPLIES 001-5-210-6372 $ 350.75
29 MAVERIK FD-FUEL 002-5-150-6350 $ 242.58
30 MENARDS PARKS 001-5-430-6325 $ 21.18
31 MID AMERICAN ENERGY SHOP 001-5-210-6371 $ 63.97
32 MID AMERICAN ENERGY FD 002-5-150-6330 $ 99.78
33 MID AMERICAN ENERGY CITY HALL 001-5-650-6371 $ 14.54 $ 178.29
34 SHARON TELEPHONE CITY HALL 001-5-650-6373 $ 212.26
35 SHARON TELEPHONE FD 002-5-150-6332 $ 203.26
36 SHARON TELEPHONE SHOP 001-5-210-6373 $ 40.83
37 SHARON TELEPHONE WTP 600-5-810-6373 $ 40.83
38 SHARON TELEPHONE WWTP 610-5-815-6373 $ 40.83 $ 538.01
39 STEPHANIE THOMANN CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE 001-5-650-6373 $ 50.00
40 VEENSTRA & KIMM SCADA CONTROLS WP 301-5-750-6798 $ 55.75
41 VEENSTRA & KIMM SCADA CONTROLS WWTP 301-5-750-6765 $ 55.75
42 VEENSTRA & KIMM UV SYSTEM 301-5-750-6798 $ 928.00 $ 1,039.50

TOTAL BILLS**********************$ 69,074.38

DELTA DENTAL DEN/VIS - MAY 001-5-430-6150 $ 251.58
WELLMARK BC/BS - MAY 001-5-620-6150 $ 3,312.99
US CELLULAR FD 002-5-150-6332 $ 73.95
VERIZON GATEWAYS 600-5-810-6373 $ 31.77
VERIZON GATEWAYS 610-5-815-6373 $ 37.77 $ 69.54
LINCOLN NAT'L LIFE LIFE INS - FEB 001-5-620-6150 $ 353.87

TOTAL PAID BILLS $ 4,061.93
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 73,136.31

EXPENDITURES by FUND
GENERAL FUND $ 29,492.21
FIRE DEPARTMENT $ 4,752.44
ROAD USE FUND $ 0.00
CASINO $ 1,012.50
CAPITAL PROJECTS $ 2,304.50
COMMUNITY CENTER $ 30,362.50
WATER FUND $ 231.83
SEWER FUND $ 918.40

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 69,074.38$   



1

Stephanie Thomann

From: noreply@salesforce.com on behalf of IOWA ABD Licensing Support 
<licensingnotification@iowaabd.com>

Sent: Thursday, May 29, 2025 9:00 AM
To: Stephanie Thomann
Cc: licensingnotification@iowaabd.com
Subject: Application App-222247 Pending Dramshop Review

Hello, 

Application Number App-222247 has been set to "Pending Dramshop Review" status and is currently awaiting 
verification from the Applicant's designated Insurance Company. Once that has happened, you will receive a 
notification indicating that this Application will be ready for your review.  

Corp Name: RIVERSIDE AREA COMMUNITY CLUB 

DBA: RIVERSIDE AREA COMMUNITY CLUB  

License Number:  

Application Number: App-222247 

Tentative Effective Date: 6/25/2025 

License Type: Special Class C Retail Alcohol License (BW) 

Application Type: New 

Amendment Type:  

Thank you. 

NOTICE: This email originated from outside the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and 
know the content is safe. 









 

CIVIL    STRUCTURAL    MECHANICAL    ELECTRICAL    SURVEY    SPECIALTY 

 

 

300 S Clinton Street #200, Iowa City, IA  52240 | 319.519.6220 www.axiom-con.com 

2330 12th Street SW, Cedar Rapids, IA  52404 | 319.519.6220 Page | 1 

ENGINEER’S REPORT 
 

PROJECT: City of Riverside 

DATE: May 29, 2025 

TO: City Council 

TOPIC: Project Updates 

  

 

CDBG Downtown Revitalization 

• Progress Meeting No. 1 was held Wednesday May 21, 2025. 

• Pay Application No. 1 was sent to City Friday May 23, 2025, for Council Approval.  

• Change Order Request No. 2 approved by Building Owner (11 E 1st Street).  

• Next Progress Meeting (No. 2) will be held Wednesday, June 25, 2025. 

PCC Improvements 

• Substantially completed.  Final backfill to be completed in Railroad Park, and Axiom to perform final 

walkthrough. 

• Big Iron is currently working on fabricating railings and stairs for 3rd Street. 

 

Community Wellness Center 

• OPN and Axiom assisting the City with marketing and bond/financial preparation efforts. 

• All SD’s, narratives, and pricing have been completed. 

• Axiom has suggested to move into the next phase of design in preparation for potential construction in 

2026.   

 

Cherry Lane 

• Construction anticipated to start Monday, June 2nd.   

• Progress meetings are to be held on site every two weeks. 

 

Hall Park Pickleball Courts 

• The pre-construction meeting for this project will be held at 3:00pm on June 16th.   

 

Story Map 

• Axiom has created a Story Map interactive website for the purpose of providing updates to City staff, 

City Council, and the residents of Riverside on previous projects completed and current projects under 

construction or soon to be. The link is below and will continue to be updated.   

https://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/e9bde3c8c1f9492c944415c28c145cb9 

 

 

 

 

https://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/e9bde3c8c1f9492c944415c28c145cb9


Page 1PAYMENT APPLICATION

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 ($72,500.00)

($72,500.00)

$0.00 ($72,500.00)

Architect's signature below is his assurance to Owner, concerning the payment herein applied for, 
that: (1) Architect has inspected the Work represented by this Application, (2) such Work has been 
completed to the extent indicated in this Application, and the quality of workmanship and materials 
conforms with the Contract Documents, (3) this Application for Payment accurately states the amount 
of Work completed and payment due therefor, and (4) Architect knows of no reason why payment 
should not be made.

My Commission Expires:

Notary Public:

By: Date:

State of:

County of:

Subscribed and sworn to before

me this day of

By: Date:

Application is made for payment as shown below.
Continuation Page is attached.

TO:

FROM:

FOR:

PROJECT
NAME AND
LOCATION:

ARCHITECT:

Distribution to:

OWNER

ARCHITECT

CONTRACTOR

APPLICATION #

PERIOD THRU:

PROJECT #s:

DATE OF CONTRACT:

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

CONTRACT AMOUNT

SUM OF ALL CHANGE ORDERS

CURRENT CONTRACT AMOUNT (Line 1 +/-  2)

TOTAL COMPLETED AND STORED

(Column G on Continuation Page)

RETAINAGE:

of Completed Work

(Columns D + E on Continuation Page)

of Material Stored

(Column F on Continuation Page)

Total Retainage (Line 5a + 5b or

Column I on Continuation Page)

6. TOTAL COMPLETED AND STORED LESS RETAINAGE

(Line 4 minus Line 5 Total)

7. LESS PREVIOUS PAYMENT APPLICATIONS

8. PAYMENT DUE

9. BALANCE TO COMPLETION

(Line 3 minus Line 6)

SUMMARY OF CHANGE ORDERS

  Total changes approved in

  previous months

  Total approved this month

TOTALS

  NET CHANGES

ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS

Riverside Façade

02/25/2025

City of Riverside

60 Greene Street

Riverside, IA 52327

$1,023,000.00

Riverside Façade

Martin Gardner Architecture

700 11th St, Suite 200

Marion, IA 52302

5.00%a.

5.00%b.

façade rehabilitation

05/20/2025

($72,500.00)

$950,500.00

1

$96,792.13

$4,839.61

$0.00

$4,839.61

$91,952.52

$0.00

$91,952.52

$858,547.48

Cornerstone Commercial Contractors, Inc.

401 7th St

Corning, Iowa 50841

façade rehabilitation

Iowa

Adams

01-19-2028

60 Greene Street

Riverside, IA 52327

May  202520th

Bethany Jordan, AIA

Jaime Johnston

CONTRACTOR'S SUMMARY OF WORK
Contractor's signature below is his assurance to Owner, concerning the payment herein applied for, 
that: (1) the Work has been performed as required in the Contract Documents, (2) all sums previously 
paid to Contractor under the Contract have been used to pay Contractor's costs for labor, materials 
and other obligations under the Contract for Work previously paid for, and (3) Contractor is legally 
entitled to this payment.

ARCHITECT'S CERTIFICATION

CERTIFIED AMOUNT.........................................................................................

(If the certified amount is different from the payment due, you should attach an explanation. Initial all 
the figures that are changed to match the certified amount.)

ARCHITECT:

Neither this Application nor payment applied for herein is assignable or negotiable. Payment shall be 
made only to Contractor, and is without prejudice to any rights of Owner or Contractor under the 
Contract Documents or otherwise.

Quantum Software Solutions, Inc. DocumentPAYMENT APPLICATION

CONTRACTOR:  Cornerstone Commercial Contractors, Inc.

Jason Kentner, Owner 05-20-2025

Jason 
Kentne
r

Digitally signed 
by Jason 
Kentner 
Date: 
2025.05.20 
15:43:18 -05'00'

$91,952.52

5/22/25



PERIOD THRU: 05/20/2025

DATE OF APPLICATION: 05/20/2025

APPLICATION #:

A B C

ITEM #

D

COMPLETED WORK

E

WORK DESCRIPTION
SCHEDULED

AMOUNT AMOUNT
THIS PERIOD

F IHG

RETAINAGE
(If Variable)

BALANCE
TO

COMPLETION
(C-G)

%
COMP.
(G / C)

TOTAL
COMPLETED AND

STORED
(D + E + F)

STORED
MATERIALS

(NOT IN D OR E)
AMOUNT

PREVIOUS
PERIODS

Riverside FaçadePROJECT #s:

1

Page 2 of  5

PROJECT: Riverside Façade

façade rehabilitation

CONTINUATION PAGE

Payment Application containing Contractor's signature is attached.

41 West 1st St1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

100%Masonry1a $4,100.00 $0.00 $4,100.00 $0.00 $4,100.00 $0.00

5%Carpentry1b $10,500.00 $0.00 $525.00 $0.00 $525.00 $9,975.00

0%Stain glass repair1c $12,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,500.00

0%Door rehab1d $6,950.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,950.00

0%Door-hardware1e $3,347.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,347.00

0%Painting1f $7,706.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,706.00

0%Windows1g $4,727.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,727.00

0%Glass1h $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00

0%Signage1i $2,750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,750.00

0%Misc building materials1j $857.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $857.00

0%Contingency allowance1k $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00

0%Allowance #1 wood cornice1l $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00

0%Allowance #2 metal cornice1m $4,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,500.00

100%Performance Bond1n $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00

8%Genercal conditions, overhead 1o $28,094.00 $0.00 $2,247.52 $0.00 $2,247.52 $25,846.48

31 West 1st St2 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

100%Masonry2a $3,750.00 $0.00 $3,750.00 $0.00 $3,750.00 $0.00

5%Carpentry2b $12,500.00 $0.00 $625.00 $0.00 $625.00 $11,875.00

0%Windows2c $5,713.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,713.00

0%Aluminum storefront2d $14,600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $14,600.00

0%Door-hardware2e $8,142.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,142.00

0%Painting2f $4,171.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,171.00

0%Electrical2g $2,431.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,431.00

0%Misc building materials2h $2,357.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,357.00

0%Contingency allowance2i $7,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,200.00

100%Performance bond2j $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00

10%General conditions, overhead and 2k $13,629.00 $0.00 $1,362.90 $0.00 $1,362.90 $12,266.10

21 W 1st St3 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

10%$179,024.00 $0.00 $18,610.42 $0.00 $18,610.42 $160,413.58SUB-TOTALS

CONTINUATION PAGE Quantum Software Solutions, Inc. Document



PERIOD THRU: 05/20/2025

DATE OF APPLICATION: 05/20/2025

APPLICATION #:

A B C

ITEM #

D

COMPLETED WORK

E

WORK DESCRIPTION
SCHEDULED

AMOUNT AMOUNT
THIS PERIOD

F IHG

RETAINAGE
(If Variable)

BALANCE
TO

COMPLETION
(C-G)

%
COMP.
(G / C)

TOTAL
COMPLETED AND

STORED
(D + E + F)

STORED
MATERIALS

(NOT IN D OR E)
AMOUNT

PREVIOUS
PERIODS

Riverside FaçadePROJECT #s:

1

Page 3 of  5

PROJECT: Riverside Façade

façade rehabilitation

CONTINUATION PAGE

Payment Application containing Contractor's signature is attached.

100%Masonry3a $12,300.00 $0.00 $12,300.00 $0.00 $12,300.00 $0.00

5%Carpentry3b $8,500.00 $0.00 $425.00 $0.00 $425.00 $8,075.00

0%Aluminum storefront3c $24,400.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $24,400.00

0%Windows3d $5,713.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,713.00

0%Solid surface sills3e $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00

0%Painting3f $2,806.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,806.00

0%Electrical3g $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00

0%Asbestos3h $2,675.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,675.00

0%Misc building materials3i $2,357.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,357.00

0%Contingency allowance3j $4,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00

100%Performance bond3k $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00

21%General conditions, overhead and 3l $7,994.00 $0.00 $1,678.74 $0.00 $1,678.74 $6,315.26

11 East South 1st St4 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

90%Masonry4a $38,050.00 $0.00 $34,245.00 $0.00 $34,245.00 $3,805.00

5%Carpentry4b $30,750.00 $0.00 $1,537.50 $0.00 $1,537.50 $29,212.50

0%Windows4c $26,736.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $26,736.00

0%Roofing4d $23,300.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $23,300.00

0%Doors-hardware4e $5,233.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,233.00

0%Aluminum storefront4f $19,600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $19,600.00

0%Painting4g $2,109.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,109.00

0%Signage4h $2,250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,250.00

0%Electrical4i $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00

0%Asbestos4j $4,440.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,440.00

0%Misc building materials4k $2,357.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,357.00

0%Contingency allowance4l $19,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $19,000.00

100%Performance bond4m $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00

18%General conditions, overhead and 4n $42,691.00 $0.00 $7,684.38 $0.00 $7,684.38 $35,006.62

11 East North 1st St5 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

0%Masonry5a $23,400.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $23,400.00

17%$499,685.00 $0.00 $82,481.04 $0.00 $82,481.04 $417,203.96SUB-TOTALS

CONTINUATION PAGE Quantum Software Solutions, Inc. Document



PERIOD THRU: 05/20/2025

DATE OF APPLICATION: 05/20/2025

APPLICATION #:

A B C

ITEM #

D

COMPLETED WORK

E

WORK DESCRIPTION
SCHEDULED

AMOUNT AMOUNT
THIS PERIOD

F IHG

RETAINAGE
(If Variable)

BALANCE
TO

COMPLETION
(C-G)

%
COMP.
(G / C)

TOTAL
COMPLETED AND

STORED
(D + E + F)

STORED
MATERIALS

(NOT IN D OR E)
AMOUNT

PREVIOUS
PERIODS

Riverside FaçadePROJECT #s:

1

Page 4 of  5

PROJECT: Riverside Façade

façade rehabilitation

CONTINUATION PAGE

Payment Application containing Contractor's signature is attached.

5%Carpentry5b $17,500.00 $0.00 $875.00 $0.00 $875.00 $16,625.00

0%Concrete5c $10,239.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,239.00

0%Roofing5d $18,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,000.00

0%Windows5e $13,050.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,050.00

0%Doors-hardware5f $8,909.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,909.00

0%Painting5g $6,056.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,056.00

0%Asbestos5h $2,655.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,655.00

0%Misc building materials5i $857.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $857.00

0%Contingency allowance5j $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00

0%Allowance #3 wood cornice5k $3,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,500.00

100%Performance bond5l $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00

2%General conditions, overhead and 5m $54,744.00 $0.00 $1,094.88 $0.00 $1,094.88 $53,649.12

71 East 1st St6 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

0%Masonry6a $89,360.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $89,360.00

0%Concrete6b $5,564.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,564.00

5%Carpentry6c $33,500.00 $0.00 $1,675.00 $0.00 $1,675.00 $31,825.00

0%Window rehab6d $6,071.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,071.00

0%Windows6e $35,117.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $35,117.00

0%Storm windows6f $13,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,000.00

0%Doors-hardware6g $16,015.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16,015.00

0%Wood deck6h $18,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,500.00

0%Metal railing6i $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00

0%Painting6j $7,197.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,197.00

0%Misc building materials6k $1,857.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,857.00

0%Contingency allowance6l $30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30,000.00

100%Performance bond6m $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00

2%General conditions, overhead and 6n $65,603.00 $0.00 $1,312.06 $0.00 $1,312.06 $64,290.94

0%CO #1 COR #1 scope reduction6o ($72,500.00) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($72,500.00)

81 East 1st St7 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

10%$915,479.00 $0.00 $93,437.98 $0.00 $93,437.98 $822,041.02SUB-TOTALS

CONTINUATION PAGE Quantum Software Solutions, Inc. Document



PERIOD THRU: 05/20/2025

DATE OF APPLICATION: 05/20/2025

APPLICATION #:

A B C

ITEM #

D

COMPLETED WORK

E

WORK DESCRIPTION
SCHEDULED

AMOUNT AMOUNT
THIS PERIOD

F IHG

RETAINAGE
(If Variable)

BALANCE
TO

COMPLETION
(C-G)

%
COMP.
(G / C)

TOTAL
COMPLETED AND

STORED
(D + E + F)

STORED
MATERIALS

(NOT IN D OR E)
AMOUNT

PREVIOUS
PERIODS

Riverside FaçadePROJECT #s:

1

Page 5 of  5

PROJECT: Riverside Façade

façade rehabilitation

CONTINUATION PAGE

Payment Application containing Contractor's signature is attached.

0%Masonry7a $3,800.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,800.00

0%Carpentry7b $4,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,500.00

0%Aluminum storefront7c $14,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $14,000.00

0%Painting7d $1,298.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,298.00

0%Window7e $1,031.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,031.00

0%Misc building materials7f $857.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $857.00

0%Contingency allowance7g $2,600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,600.00

100%Performance bond7h $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $0.00

9%General conditions, overhead and 7i $3,935.00 $0.00 $354.15 $0.00 $354.15 $3,580.85

10%$950,500.00 $0.00 $96,792.13 $0.00 $96,792.13 $853,707.87TOTALS

CONTINUATION PAGE Quantum Software Solutions, Inc. Document



RESOLUTION #2025-XX 

PAY REQUEST #1 TO CORNERSTONE COMMERCIAL CONTRACTORS, INC. FOR WORK 
COMPLETED ON CDBG DOWNTOWN REVITALIZATION PROJECT       

WHEREAS, the City of Riverside awarded a contract to Cornerstone Commercial Contractors, 
Inc. for the revitalization of the Downtown District in the amount of $1,023,000.00 at the Riverside 
City Council Meeting on November 4th, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Riverside has been provided an authorized pay request and 
recommendation of approval by the contracted engineering firm, Martin Gardner Architecture. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of Riverside, Iowa does hereby 
accept Pay Request #1 and authorizes payment in the amount of $91,952.52 to Cornerstone 
Commercial Contractors, Inc. for work completed on the CDBG Downtown Revitalization Project 
for the period of 2/25/2025 through 5/20/2025 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the City Council of Riverside, Iowa, that the Mayor and City 
Administrator are hereby authorized and directed to execute said resolution. 

It was moved by Councilperson _________, seconded by Councilperson ________ to approve 
the foregoing resolution. 

Roll Call: Rogerson, Kiene, Schneider, Mills, Sexton 

Ayes:  

Nays:  

Absents: 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the Riverside City Council on this 2nd day of June 2025. 

Signed: ___________________________ Date: ________________________ 

  Allen Schneider, Mayor 

Attest: ____________________________ Date: ________________________ 

Stephanie Thomann, City Clerk 



Cherry Lane Extension

ENGINEER: AXIOM CONSULTANTS, INC.

300 S Clinton St. Unit 200

Iowa City, IA 52240 Opinion of Costs-School Property

Project No.: 24-0021

NO. ITEM UNIT QUANTITY UNIT COST

ENGINEER'S 

ESTIMATE

1 CLEARING AND GRUBBING LS 0.0 $2,000.00 $0

2 TOPSOIL, ON-SITE CY 50.0 $10.80 $540

3 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10 CY 65.0 $14.70 $956

4 SUBGRADE PREPARATION SY 322.0 $0.75 $242

5 COMPACTION TESTING LS 0.0 $1,850.00 $0

6 BELOW GRADE EXCAVATION CY 0.0 $52.00 $0

7 MODIFIED SUBBASE, 4 IN. TON 34.3 $25.80 $884

8 MODIFIED SUBBASE, 6 IN. TON 72.8 $24.85 $1,809

9 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, 15 IN. LF 0.0 $47.65 $0

10 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, 18 IN. LF 0.0 $49.65 $0

11 SUBDRAIN, 6" LF 0.0 $8.10 $0

12 INTAKE, SW-509 EACH 0.0 $7,012.00 $0

13 INTAKE, SW-545 EACH 0.0 $5,280.00 $0

14 PAVEMENT, PCC, 7 IN. SY 72.0 $63.30 $4,558

15 CURB AND GUTTER, 24" WIDE, 7" THICKNESS LF 334.1 $39.50 $13,197

16 PCC PAVEMENT SAMPLES AND TESTING LS 0.0 $2,000.00 $0

17 SIDEWALK, PCC, 4 IN SY 60.9 $46.00 $2,800

18 SIDEWALK, PCC, 6 IN SY 121.0 $61.00 $7,379

19 DETECTABLE WARNING PANELS SF 16.0 $35.00 $560

20 PAVEMENT REMOVALS SY 425.7 $8.35 $3,555

21 SIGN INSTALLATION LS 0.0 $4,068.00 $0

22 TRAFFIC SIGN REMOVAL LS 0.0 $500.00 $0

23 PAVEMENT MARKINGS & SIGNAGE STA 4.3 $570.00 $2,451

24 PAINTED SYMBOLS AND LEGENDS, SOLVENT/WATERBORNE EACH 2.0 $100.00 $200

25 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 0.0 $1,600.00 $0

26 HYDRAULIC SEEDING ACRE 0.0 $8,000.00 $0

27 TEMP SEEDING ACRE 0.0 $1,000.00 $0

28 WATERING EACH 0.0 $400.00 $0

29 FILTER SOCK, 9 IN. LF 235.0 $1.50 $353

30 FILTER SOCK, REMOVAL LF 235.0 $0.01 $2

31 RIP RAP, CLASS D TON 0.0 $61.60 $0

32 SILT FENCE EACH 175.0 $1.75 $306

33 SILT FENCE, REMOVAL OF SEDIMENT EACH 175.0 $0.25 $44

34 SILT FENCE, REMOVAL OF DEVICE LF 175.0 $0.25 $44

35 INLET PROECTECTION EACH 0.0 $150.00 $0

36 INLET PROTECTION, MAINTENANCE EACH 0.0 $40.00 $0

37 MOBILIZATION LS 0.0 $15,909.88 $0

38 MAINTENANCE OF POSTAL SERVICE LS 0.0 $1,000.00 $0

39 CONCRETE WASHOUT LS 0.0 $500.00 $0

Total $39,878.29

Friday, March 21, 2025

AWARDED BID

1



AGREEMENT FOR RESIDENTIAL SOLID WASTE AND RECYCLING 

COLLECTION SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the City of Riverside, Iowa, a municipal 
corporation, hereinafter referred to as "City", and Lakeshore Recycling Systems, hereinafter 
referred to as "Hauler". In consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the parties agree 
as follows: 

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS. 

a. "Aluminum can" shall mean disposable aluminum beverage containers.

b. "Ashes" shall mean the residue from the burning of wood and other non-hazardous
combustible materials.

c. "Brush" shall mean woody stems and branches greater than ½-inch diameter, evergreen
trimmings and thorny brush.

d. "Bulky waste" shall mean large household appliances including but not limited to stoves,
refrigerators (unless it contains a component having hazardous substances, such as Freon,
in which event disposal would be by special arrangement only), television sets, washing
machines, dryers, logs and other items of similar size, and fixtures and materials too large
to fit into a bag or rigid container.

e. "City" shall mean the City of Riverside, Iowa.

f. "Collection bag" shall mean a plastic, water tight bag, securely tied or sealed and not
exceeding 35 gallons in size and 40 pounds in weight when full.

g. "Construction and demolition waste" shall include but not limited to lumber, roofing
material, sheathing, rubble, broken concrete, plaster, brick, conduit, pipe, wire insulation
and similar materials which result from a construction, demolition or remodeling process.

h. "Container" shall mean a closed and water proof plastic container, varying in size and
provided by the Hauler.

i. "Curbside" shall mean the area adjacent to the curb or travelled portion of the roadway.

J. "Dwelling unit" shall mean any room or group of rooms located within a building and
forming a single habitable unit with facilities that are used or intended to be used for living,
sleeping, cooking and eating.

k. "Extra refuse" shall mean trash that exceeds the amount of capacity in the container.

1 



1. "Glass containers" shall mean glass bottles and jars made from clear, green or brown glass.
Expressly excluded from this definition is window glass and other non-container glass or
glass products, porcelain and ceramic products.

m. "Hauler" shall mean Lakeshore Recycling Systems.

n. "Household" shall be composed of persons that reside together in a dwelling unit.

o. "Newspaper" shall mean paper of the type commonly referred to as newsprint and
distributed at fixed intervals, having printed thereon news and opinions containing
advertisements and other matters of public interest. Soiled newspapers are excluded as a
recyclable item.

p. "Non-collectible waste" shall mean paint in liquid form, poisons, acids, caustics,
explosives and other hazardous substances that may cause damage or injury to collection
equipment or personnel, human or animal excrement and dead animals.

q. "Paper bag" shall mean a paper container that is capable of being shredded and will
decompose in a compost pile.

r. "Residential solid waste" shall mean refuse, recyclables, and bulky waste.

s. "Refuse" shall mean solid waste such as food waste, trash, rags, ashes, ceramics, non
recyclable plastics and similar items produced or originating within dwelling units.
Recyclables shall be treated as refuse if not property disposed of as set forth herein. Refuse
does not mean household generated hazardous substances.

t. "Recyclables" shall mean designated consumer wastes that are collected and marketed for
resource recovery, including newspaper, tin and steel cans, aluminum beverage containers,
glass containers, and plastic containers.

u. "Removal" shall mean collection and disposal.

v. "Tags" shall mean the tag (commonly referred to as a "sticker") designated by the City of
Riverside which is placed on extra refuse and bulky waste to indicate that the disposal fee
has been paid.

w. "Tin and steel can" shall mean a clean container made of tin coated iron or steel in which
food or beverages are preserved.

SECTION 2. SCOPE OF WORK 

a. The Hauler agrees to collect and dispose of recyclables from each single family dwelling,
two-unit family dwelling, condominium unit and each mobile home in the City once each
week. The City, in consultation with the Hauler, agrees to update the number of dwelling
units covered by this Agreement every thirty (30) days. The monthly cost per dwelling unit

2 





or approved and the Hauler is using the Iowa City Landfill to dispose of the waste and 
refuse collected in Riverside. 

SECTION 3. INSUFFICIENT SERVICE PENALTY, BREACH 

The City reserves the right to impose an insufficient service penalty whenever the Hauler does 
not begin and complete the above-referenced service during the time period of 7:00 a.m. to 4:00 
p.m. on the designated days of collection and the insufficient service is the result of action,
inaction, lack of equipment, equipment failure or other circumstances under the control of the
Hauler. The penalty imposed may be up to five percent (5%) of the monthly charge for collection
and disposal of refuse and recyclables on all accounts and may include termination of this
Agreement for repeat or continuing violations. The City Administrator shall notify the Hauler, in
writing, within ten (10) days of the date of the insufficient service if this penalty provision is to be
assessed by the City. The Hauler may appeal the assessment of the penalty to the City Council
within ten ( 10) days of the date of the written notice. The City Council's decision regarding the
imposition of the penalty shall be final. Nothing in this Section shall prohibit the City from
exercising its termination authority pursuant to Section 15 below.

Alternatively, the City reserves the right to treat insufficient service as a breach of this 
Agreement consistent with Section 15 below. 

SECTION 4. TERMS OF CONTRACT 

This Agreement shall be in force from July 1, 2025, until June 30, 2030, unless terminated as 
provided herein. The parties shall advise each other by March l, 2030, if the parties wish to 
negotiate a contract extension or terminate the contract on June 30, 2030. After June 30, 2030, 
contracts can be negotiated for three (3) year terms. 

SECTION 5. COLLECTION SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 

a. The collection of residential solid waste shall be confined to Monday, Tuesday,
Wednesday, Thursday and Friday and such collection shall occur between the hours of7:00
a.m. and 4:00 p.m. on any collection day. Saturday collection shall be allowed in any week
in which New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Fourth of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving, or
Christmas Day are observed on the aforementioned weekdays. The Hauler shall propose
the exact hours, within the above hourly limit and days, during the week for residential
solid waste collection and disposal.

b. Routes of collection will be determined by the Hauler and subject to City approval.
Collections will be made on the same days of each week and the Hauler shall travel said
route in the same direction and manner each collection day.

c. If the collection day falls on the observance of New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Fourth of
July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving, or Christmas Day, the Hauler may elect to collect the
residential solid waste on the day before or after the holiday. If the Hauler elects to collect
the residential solid waste on the day before or after the holiday, the Hauler shall post and

4 



















RESOLUTION #2025-XX 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE CONTRACT FOR SOLID 
WASTE & RECYCLING COLLECTION SERVICES 

WHEREAS, Chapter 106 of the Riverside Code of Ordinance establishes the City’s responsibility 
to provide Solid Waste Collection Services via contract. 

WHEREAS, the City of Riverside, Iowa, received proposals for Solid Waste & Recycling 
Collection Services on February 6th, 2025. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Riverside City Council, hereby approves a 
contract for solid waste & recycling collection services with Lakeshore Recycling Systems with a 
term of July 1, 2025 to June 30, 2030. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the City Council of Riverside, Iowa that the Mayor and City 
Administrator are hereby authorized and directed to execute said resolution. 

It was moved by Councilperson _________, seconded by Councilperson ________ to approve 
the foregoing resolution. 

Roll Call: Rogerson, Kiene, Schneider, Mills, Sexton 

Ayes:  

Nays:  

Absents: 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the Riverside City Council on this 2nd day of June 2025. 

Signed:   ___________________________ Date: ________________________ 

 Allen Schneider, Mayor 

Signed:   ___________________________ Date: ________________________ 

 Stephanie Thomann, City Clerk  




